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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
NEXG DEVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of NEXG DEVICES
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022,
and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “ standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and its profit
(including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SA”s) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

3. Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report
Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including
Annexure to Board’s Report and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the stand
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financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other information comprising the
above documents is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

4. Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that

true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

5. Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events ina manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

6. Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
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A. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure-A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

B. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder;

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure-B” to this report; -

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to
us, the remuneration paid / provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements - Refer Note 41 to the standalone financial
statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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iv.  (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have heen received by the Company from any
person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v.  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

For Khandelwal Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No:-£05049W

T
Naveen ]:%n‘ '

Partner
Membership No. 5115

UDIN: 22511596A]JTXAM6640

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 25, 2022
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure referred to in paragraph 6 (A) of the Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the
members of Nexg Devices Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2022, we report that;

I. (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situations of its Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during
the year as per a regular program of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets and as informed, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanation given by the management, there are no
immovable properties owned by the Company and accordingly, the requirements under
paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. In respect of immovable
properties of land and building that have been taken on lease and disclosed as Right of use
assets in the standalone financial statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the
Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right
of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as
at March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

I (a) The inventories have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals
during the period. In our opinion having regard to the nature and location of stocks, the
frequency of physical verification is reasonable. No discrepancies were noticed on verification
between the physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate
of each class of inventory.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at points of time
during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the quarterly
returns and statements filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with the
unaudited books of account of the Company, of the respective quarters, except for £

following:
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According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made investments, provided any
guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year. The
Company has granted unsecured loans to Companies, in respect of which the requisite
information is as below:

The Company has made investments /granted unsecured loans to Companies. The details
of the same are given below:

Rs. In Lakhs
Advances in
Investments Guarantees Security Loans nature of
| I - - loans
Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year
Subsidiaries - | - | - -
- Joint Ventures - ol =1
-Associates - -| - - | :
- Others 12,000.00 - - 51,289.00 -

Balance outstanding as a balance sheet date in respect of thgé_bove case
Subsidiaries - | - - -
- Joint Ventures - -
- Associates _ - { - :
Others - - - 4,288.00

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the investments made and the
terms and conditions of the grant of loans are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of
the Company.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in respect of loans granted by the Company,
the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the
repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest are generally been regular as per
stipulation.

Continuation Sheet No.
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(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than
ninety days in respect of loans given.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, loan granted by the Company has fallen due
during the year and was repaid on or before the due date. Further, no fresh loans were
granted to any party to settle the overdue loans.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any
terms or period of repayment.

[V In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, where applicable, complied with
the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 20 13, wherever applicable.

V. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits within the meaning of the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

VI. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013
for the products of the Company.

VIL.  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and records examined by us, the
Company is generally been regular in depositing, with the appropriate authorities, undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and
service tax, cess and other material statutory dues wherever applicable.

According to information and explanation given to us, and as per the records examined by us,
no undisputed arrears of statutory dues outstanding as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and records examined by us,
there are no dues of income tax, goods and service tax, custom duty & cess or any other
statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

VIIL.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any
transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

IX. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and records examined by us, as
at the Balance Sheet date the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial
institution or banks or debenture holders.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records, the Company has not taken any term loan during the
year and hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised
on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes
by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the financial statements of the company, we report that the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by
us, we report that the Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, joint ventures
or associate company (as defined under the Act).

X. (a) Based on our examinations of the records and information given to us, no money was
raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and no
term loan has been taken during the year by the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Xl.  (a) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

Xll. In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, paragraph 3(xii) of the order
is not applicable to the Company.

XIlI.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections
177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such transactions have
been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required under Indian Accounting
Standard 24, “Related Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act.

XIV. (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an adequate internal audit
system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
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(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures.

Continuation Sheet No.

XV. According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013
are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

XVI. (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) (a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during
the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order i=
not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, the Group
Iias one CICs which is not required to be registered with the Reserve Bank of India.

XVII.  The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and immediately preceding financial

Vvidl

XVIll., There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

XIX. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

XX. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing
projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in
compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.
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(b) In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) amount, to a Special account within a period of 30 days from the end of
the respective financial year in compliance with the provision of section 135(6) of the Act
except in respect of the following:

- Rs. In Lakhs
Financial Amountunspenton | Amount Transferred Amount Transferred after the
Year Corporate Social to Special Account due date
Responsibility within 30 days from
activities for the end of the
. “Ongoing Projects” | Financial Year | -
2021-22 1.59 0.27 1.32
_ (transferred on Ma\ 24, 2022
2020-21 8.00 - 8.00
(transferred on June 10, 2021
For Khandelwal Jain & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 105049W

X 1
Naveen Jain

Partner
Membership No. 511596

UDIN: 22511596A]JTXAM6640

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 25, 2022
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

To the Members of
Nexg Devices Private Limited

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Nexg Devices
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note
on Audit of Internal financial controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘[CAI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the Company'’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply

B &C. | K ROAD CHURCH GATE MUMBAI- 400
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with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

[n our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31,2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Khandelwal Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 105049W

P

Naveen Jain~
Partner
Membership No. 5115

UDIN: 22511596A]JTXAM6640

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 25,2022



Nexg Devices Private Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

(Rs. in Lakhs)
. Note | As at As at
Particulars ‘ No. March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
ASSETS '
Non-current Assets |
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment ‘ 5 98.91 120.50
(b) Right-of-Use Assets 6 31.29 84.92
(¢) Intangible Assets 7 0.08 0.49
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Loans 8 4,288.00 2,240.00
(ii) Others 9 76.40 2449
(e) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 10 | 62.66 | 163.68
Total Non-Current Assets 4,557.34 _2,634.08 |
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 11 1,408.30 2,588.76
{b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 12 7,755.58 3,662.93
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 13 486.93 1,336.34
(iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 14 73.02 52.63
(iv) Loans 15 - 50.00
(v) Others 16 407.53 12,510.69
{c) Current Tax Assets {Net) 17 75.42 42.70
(d) Other Current Assets 18 | 707.85 1,133.62 |
Total Current Assets 10.914.63 21.377.67
Total Assets L 15471.97 | 24.011.75 |
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
| (a) Equity Share Capital 19 978.00 978.00
(b) Instruments Entirely Equity in Nature 20 2,728.36 2,728.36
| (c) Other Equity 21 906.41 617.62
‘ Total Equity | 4.612.77 | 4.323.98
| LIABILITIES
Non-current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 22 1,331.20 4.36
(ii) Lease Liabilities 6 - 34.18
(b) Provisions 23 B 14.87 6.74 |
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,346.07 45.28
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 24 6,038.95 1,665.54
(ii) Lease Liabilities 6 34.18 54.34
(iii) Trade Payables 25
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises - -
and small enterprises ; and
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 2,850.00 17,374.23
micro enterprises and small enterprises.
(iv) Others 26 453.30 401.43
{b) Other Current Liabilities 27 129.35 143.51
(c) Provisions 28 | 7.35 3.44
Total Current Liabilities 9,513.13 19,642.49
Total Equity and Liabilities 15.471.97 24,011.75
Summary of Significant accounting policies and other notes to| 1-55
Standalone Financial Statements ]

As per our report of even date
For Khandelwal Jain & Co.

Chartered Accountants /

/

Firm Registration Mo=E- A

Naveen Jain"~

Partner %7.

Membership No. !

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 25, 2022

At

The accompanying explanatory notes form an integral part of these Standalone Financial Statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

/3alee

~ Sunil Batra

‘Managing Director
DIN:02188254

\ ,;
!c’ TE_ ___..—'—__

Me‘gﬁmﬁta

Compaty S¥cretary
ACS: 47015

(S |V~

_sandeep Jairath
Director & CI'O
DIN No. 05300460



Nexg Devices Private Limited

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2022

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Sr. ) Note | For the year ended For the year ended
No. Particulars No. March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
INCOME
| Revenue from operations 29 57,829.34 1,10,792.50
1§ Other Income 30 619.01 359.00
I Total Income (I+11) 58,448.35 1,11,151.50
IV |EXPENSES
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 31 54,199.21 1,09,467.71
Changes In Inventories of Stock-in-Trade 32 1,180.46 (1,908.69)
Depreciation and amortization expenses 5,6&7 91.77 89.91
Employee Benefits Expense 33 470.42 299.93
Finance Costs 34 363.51 174.34
Selling and Distribution Expenses 35 577.04 600.61
Other Expenses 36 1,079.71 1,170.00
Total Expenses (IV) 57,962.12 1,09,893.81
V  |Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax { HI-1V) 486.23 1,257.69
VI iExceptional Items - -
VII |Profit / (loss) before tax (V-VI) 486.23 1,257.69
VIII |Tax expense
(1) Current Tax 200.32 455.03
(2) Deferred Tax & MAT Credit (6.51) 350.79
(3) Income Tax for Earlier Years 2.56 -
IX |Profit / (Loss) for the year (VII-VIII) 289.86 451.87
‘X |Other Comprehensive Income ('0CI")
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/(loss) on defined benefits plans (0.80) (0.06)
Tax on above Item 0.27 0.02
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of tax) {1.07) (0.08)
XI |Totz! Comprehensive Income for the year (IX+X) 288.79 451.79
Earnings per equity share 37
Basic 2.96 4.62
| Diluted 0.78 1.22
|Summary of Significant accounting policies and other notes to Standalone 1-55
Financial Statements

The accompanying explanatory notes form an integral part of these Standalone Financial Statements

As per our report of even date
For Khandelwal Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 105049W

Naveen Jain
Partner
Membership No. 5 NS5

Place: New Detlhi
Date: May 25, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Managing Director
DIN:02188254

Company Secretary
ACS: 47015




Nexg Devices Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31,2022

(A) Equity Share Capital

(Rs. in Lakhs)

[ Particulars | Amount |
'Balance as at April 01, 2020 | 978.00
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors -
Restated balance as at April 01, 2020 978.00
Changes in euity share capital durin. the year - |
|Balance as at March 31, 2021 a 978.00 |
'Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors -
| Restated balance as at April 01, 2021 i 978,00
Changes in e/uity share capital durine the « ear S e f| -
[Balance as at March 31, 2022 - [ ~978.00 |
(B) Instruments entirely equity in nature:
(i) Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share (CCPS)
L - Particulars Amount |
‘Balance as at April 01, 2020 R 1,000.00 |
Changes in compulsorily convertible preference shares due to prior period errors -
Restated balance as at April 01, 2020 -1,000.00 ‘
Chan_:es in comjlsoril, convertible jireference shares durin:: the current . ear ) - |
|B_al,ance as at March 31, 2021 ! 1,000.00 |
Changes in compulsorily convertible preference shares due to prior period errors -
Restated balance as at April 01, 2021 1,000.00 ‘
{Chanes in compulsoril, convertible jreference shares durin;: the current vear | o - |
|Balance as at March 31, 2022 B | 1,000.00
(ii) Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDS)
Particulars Amount |
Balance as at April 01,2020 1,728.36
Changes in Compulsorily Convertible Debentures due to prior period errors
Restated balance as at April 01, 2020 1,728.36
(Chan:es in Compulsoril, Convertible Debentures durin: the current vear
Balance as at March 31, 2021 B 1,728.36
Changes in Compulsorily Convertible Debentures due to prior period errors -
Restated balance as at April 01, 2021 1,728.36
|Chan_es in Compulsorilv Convertible Debentures durin . the current year B -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 1,728.36
(C) Other Equity
Reserves and Other Comprehensive |
Particulars Surplus = Income — Total
. . emeasurement ol
T D defined benefit plans | J
As at March 31, 2020 164.55 1.28 165.83
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - - -
Restated balance as at April 01, 2020 164.55 1.28 165.83
Profit/(Loss) for the year 451.87 - 451.87
Other Comyprehensive Income, |Loss| for the year 10.08 (0.08)
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year 451.79 - 451.79
Transfer to retained earnings 1.28 11.28| -
As at March 31,2021 I 617.62 . 617.62
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors -
| Restated balance as at April 01, 2021 | 617.62 - 617.62
Profit/(Loss) for the year | 289.86 - 289.86
Other Comprehensive Income, |Loss| for the vear 1.07| - 11.07]
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year 288.79 - 288.79
‘Transfer to retained earnin:'s | - .
\As at March 31, 2022 906.41 - 906.41
Summary of Significant accounting policies and other notes to Standalone Financial 1-55

|Statements

The accompanying explanatory notes form an integral part of these Standalone Financial Statements

As per our report of even date

For Khandelwal Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountan

Naveen Jain®
Partner
Membership No.

/
e

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 25, 2022

' Sunil Batra

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

[

L

Managing Director
DIN:02188254

\'.'\- bl ;'L
Meghs Tehta
Company Secretary
ACS: 47015

¥ 3!""__,.-/

3
* Sandeep ]:}irath
Director & CK0
DIN No. 05300460
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Nexg Devices Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended March 31,2022

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Cash Flow from Operating Activites
Net profit / (loss) before tax 486.23 1,257.69
Adjustment for :
Depreciation and Amortisation 91.77 89.91
Finance Cost 295,55 135.92
Interest Income (609.09) (356.93)
(221.77) (131.10)
Operating cash flow before changes in working capital
264.46 1,126.59
Changes in Working Capital:
Trade & Other Receivables (3,666.98) (15,245.83)
Inventories 1,180.46 (1,908.69)
Trade Payables & Other Current Liabilities (14,521.53) 2,709.77
(17,008.05) (14,444.75)
Net cash generated from operations before tax (16,743.59) (13,318.16)
Taxation (128.33) (475.89)
Net Cash from/(used) in Operating Activites (A) (16,871.92) (13,794.05)
Cash Flow from Investing Activites
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (16.13) (1.30)
(Increase)/Decrease in Fixed Deposits(having
original maturity of more than 3Months) (69.77) (41.90)
(Purchase)/Sale of investment 12,000.00 =
Loans and advances (given)/received back (1,998.00) 11,664.98
Interest Received (net) 709.82 1,722.72
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (B) 10,625.92 13,344.50
Cash Flow from Financing Activites
Payment of Lease Liabilities - Principal portion (54.34) (49.40)
Payment of Lease Liabilities - Interest portion (5.65) (10.60)
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Long Term Loan 1,324.48 (17.60)
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Short Term Loan 4,375.77 1,576.92
| Interest Paid (243.67) 1143.63)
|Net Cash generated from Financing Activities (C) 5,396.59 1,355.69
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents
during the Year (A+B+C) (849.41) 906.14
Add: Cash & Cash Eqjuivalents as at beginning of the Year 1,336.34 430.20
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at the end of the Year
| (refer Note No. 13) 486.93 1,336.34
Notes:
1. The above Statement of Cash-flows has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in Indian Accounting Standard-7 “Statement of
Cash Flows”,
2. Figures in brackets represents cash outflows.
3. Components of cash and cash equivalents :-
X As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2022 2021
Cash on hand 0.53 0.54
Balances with scheduled Banks
- In Current Accounts 256.05 1,323.66
- In Fixed Depiosits 0-3 months 230.35 12.14
Cash & Cash Equivalents 486.93 1,336.34
Summary of Significant accounting policies and other 1-55
notes to Standalone Financial Statements

The accompanying explanatory notes form an integral part of these Standalone Financial Statements

As per our report of even date
For Khandelwal Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 105855234

Naveen Jain
Partner

ey, "j:Z(.-'-’

Managing Director
DIN:02188254

Company Se¥retary
ACS: 47015

Place: New Delhi
Date: Mav 25, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

3
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e Sandeep fairath

Director &
DIN No. 05300460

CFO
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NEXG DEVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U32300DL2011PTC215856)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022

1. Background of the Company

NexG Devices Private Limited (NDPL) is into the business of and has rich experience in
procurement and distribution of Mobile Handsets, Mobile accessories, Audio segment and IT
products of various brands. NDPL has distribution arrangement with these brands for distribution
and marketing of their products in the Indian markets. NDPL has marketing offices and warehouses
located at various cities in India and over a period of time it has established a nationwide network
to handle the distribution business all over India.

NDPL, has a strong presence with warehouses and logistic tie ups across the country. NDPL is
currently doing business with VIVO, Tecno, Itel, Reliance JIO mobile brands to distribute mobile
handsets to LFRs (Large Format Retail outlets) across the country.

NDPL has also entered in Audio segment & accessories and is doing business with HARMAN for
distribution of their brand “Infinity” in General Trade across India as an exclusive partner to
HARMAN.

NDPL is also doing business with HARMAN brand |BL to distribute their products to LFRs (Large
Format Retail outlets) across the country. NDPL had also done tie-ups with Consumer Electronics
brands Metz, AKAI & TreeView for their products mainly LED TV..

2. RECENT PRONOUNCEMENTS

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time.
On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1st, 2022, as below:-

A. Ind AS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate
directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation
of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a
clarification and the Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant
impact in its financial statements.

B. Ind AS 103 - Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition
method, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of
assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian
Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes do not significantly change

aments of ind AS 103. The Company does not expect the amendment to h/age/ag\

’/L
impact in its financial statements. s
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3.

3.1

3.2

C. Ind AS 16 - Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant
and equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company is
preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognize such sales proceeds
and related cost in profit or loss. The Company does not expect the amendments to have any
impact in its recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its financial statements.

D. Ind AS 109 - Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies the treatment of any cost or fees incurred by an entity in the
process of derecognition of financial liability in case of repurchase of the debt instrument by
the issuer. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in
its financial statements.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements ('financial statements’) have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standard ('Ind AS'") notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended
from time to time.

The accounting policies, as set out in the following paragraphs of this note, have been
consistently applied, by the Company, to all the periods presented in the said financial
statements. The preparation of the said financial statements requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates and judgments. It also requires the management to exercise judgment in
the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. The areas where estimates are
significant to the financial statements, or areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, are disclosed in Note 38. '

The financial statements are based on the classification provisions contained in Ind AS 1,
'Presentation of Financial Statements' and division II of schedule III of the Companies Act 2013,

Further, for the purpose of clarity, various items are aggregated in the statement of profit and
loss and balance sheet. Nonetheless, these items are dis-aggregated separately in the notes to
the financial statements, where applicable or required. All the amounts included in the financial
statements have been rounded off to the nearest Lakhs upto two decimals, as required by
General Instructions for preparation of Financial Statements in Division II of Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013, except per share data and unless stated otherwise.

Historical Cost Convention

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual and going concern basis, and the
historical cost convention except where the Ind AS requires a different accounting treatment.
The principal variations from the historical cost convention relate to financial instruments
classified as fair value for the followings:




3.3

3.4

(a) certain financial assets and liabilities and contingent consideration that is measured at fair
value;

(b) assets held for sale measured at fair value less cost to sell;

(c) defined benefit plans plan assets measured at fair value, and

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-
current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period other than for (a)
above, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

a) Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

b) Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

¢) Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period other than for (a)
above, or

d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are classified as non- current assets and
liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents. the Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and
measurement principles of Ind AS requires the management of the Company to make estimates
and judgements that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to
contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
income and expense for the periods presented.




3.5

4.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and
future periods are affected.

Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each Balance
Sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non financial asset takes into account a market participant’
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels as
follows:

* Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted): This hierarchy includes financial instruments measured

using quoted prices,

* Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

¢ Level 3 - They are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant
modifications to observable related market data or Company's assumptions about pricing
by market participants. Fair values are determined in whole or in part using valuation
model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current
market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of

these financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

4.1 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets-held-for sale when their carrying amount is to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. The
sale is considered highly probable only when the asset is available for immediate sale in its
present condition, it is unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn and sale is expected within one

of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. \ esﬁff/
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Loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write -down of the asset to fair value less costs
to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an
asset, but not in excess of any cumulative loss previously recognised.

4.2 Property, Plant and Equipment (‘PPE’)

An item is recognised as an asset, if and only if; it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. PPE
are stated at actual cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Actual cost
is inclusive of freight, installation cost, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses for bringing
the asset to its working conditions for its intended use (net of tax credit, if any) and any cost
directly attributable to bring the asset into the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by the Management. It includes professional fees
and borrowing costs for qualifying assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortized once
classified as held for sale.

Significant Parts of an item of PPE (including major inspections) having different useful lives &
material value or other factors are accounted for as separate components. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Depreciation of these PPE commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. The
estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed on an annual basis and if necessary,
changes in estimates are accounted for prospectively. Depreciation on subsequent expenditure
on PPE arising on account of capital improvement or other factors is provided for prospectively
over the remaining useful life.

Depreciation is provided pro-rata to the period of use on the straight-line method based on the
estimated useful life of the assets. The useful life of property, plant and equipment are as

follows:

Asset Class Useful Life
| Computers 3 years

Server : 6 years .
I- Office Equipment 5 years ) ]
' Furniture and Fixture 10 years, except in case issued to eﬁployees, where
_ asset is depreciated in 5 years
| Vehicles - Motor Cars 8 Years -

Fixed Assets costing less than | Fully depreciated when they are ready for use. N

_ RSE,OOO .

Note:
(a) Depreciation on the amount capitalized on up-gradation of the existing assets is provided
over the balance life of the original asset. '
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(b) An item of PPE is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Intangible assets and Amortization

Intangible assets, representing software are recognised when it is probable that the future
economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of
the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at original cost net of tax/duty
credits availed, if any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impairment.
Administrative and other general overhead expenses that are specifically attributable to
acquisition of intangible assets are allocated and capitalised as a part of the cost of the
intangible assets.

Intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over a period of five years which equates
its economic useful life.

De-recognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset, and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Amortization: Intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over a period ranging
between 2-5 years which equates its economic useful life.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. The financial instruments are
recognised in the balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument. The Company determines the classification of its
financial instruments at initial recognition.

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame are recognized on the trade date, i.e, the date that the Company

commits to purchase or sell the asset. /f"“‘\ )
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Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories
based on business model of the entity:
* Debtinstruments at amortized cost.

¢ Debtinstruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

* Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL).

¢ Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI).

Debt instruments at amortized cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A’debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses &
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative
gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned
whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

Any debt instrument, that does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or
as FVTOC], is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing
so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all

zed in the P&L. ';S\__c’,e*s p’/\



Equity investments (Other than investment in subsidiary)

All other equity investments are measured at fair value. For Equity instruments, the Company
may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent
changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument
basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes
on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. This amount is not recycled
from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless they are measured at
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The
transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Investments in Mutual Funds
Investments in mutual funds are measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and
having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash
equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted
for withdrawal and usage.

De-recognition
A financial asset is de-recognized only when

¢ The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

¢ retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes
a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the
financial asset is de-recognized.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognised if the
Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of
the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing

involvement in the financial asset. c,es
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The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through
a loss allowance. In determining the allowances for doubtful trade receivables, the Company has
used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables
based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix considers historical credit loss experience
and is adjusted for forward looking information. For all other financial assets, expected credit
losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-months expected credit losses or at-an
amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L).

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the company are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost
unless at initial recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and loss.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value with all changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Trade and Other Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to
the end of financial period which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as
current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They
are recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Loans and Borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Financial Guarantee Contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently,
the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less CB_IpulgEive
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4.5

4.6

4.7

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Inventories
a) Basis of valuation:

i.  Inventories other than scrap materials are valued at lower of cost and net realizable
value after providing cost of Obsolescence, if any.

ii.  Inventory of scrap materials have been valued at net realizable value.

b) The Costis determined using FIFO basis. -
¢) Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying asset are capitalized as part of cost of such asset, Other borrowing costs are
recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use.

Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent
market transactions are considered. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on
inventories, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

A previously recognized impairment loss (except for goodwill) is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited to the carrying amount of the




4.8 Revenue recognition

The company recognizes revenue in accordance with Ind- AS 115. Revenue is recognized upon
transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration that the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.

Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (which may also refer as
unbilled revenue) while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract liabilities
(which may also refer to as unearned revenues).

The specific recognition criteria from various stream of revenue is described below:

(i) Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of
the goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts
and volume rebates.

(ii) Revenue from Services is recognized when respective service is rendered and
accepted by the customer. For all debt instruments measured either at amortized
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is
recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR).

(iii) Insurance claims are accounted for as and when admitted by the concerned
authority.

(iv) Interest Income: For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using
the effective interest rate (EIR).

(v) Dividend Income : Dividend income on investments is recognised when the right to
receive dividend is established.

(vi) Other Income: Other Income is accounted for on accrual basis except, where the
receipt of income is uncertain.

(vii) Revenue are recognised net of the Goods and Services Tax/Service Tax, wherever
applicable.

4.9 Foreign Currency Transactions

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees which represents the currency of the
economic environment in which it operates.

Transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency are recognized at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary items denominated in

foreign currency at the year end and not covered under forward exchange contracts are
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Any income or expense on account of exchange difference between the date of transaction and
on settlement or on translation is recognized in the profit and loss account as income or
expense,

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair.value was determined. Translation difference on
such assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of fair value gain or loss.

In case of forward exchange contracts, the premium or discount arising at the inception of such
contracts is amortized as income or expense over the life of the contract. Further exchange
difference on such contracts ie. difference between the exchange rate at the reporting
/settlement date and the exchange rate on the date of inception of contract/the last reporting
date, is recognized as income/expense for the period.

The Company has adopted Appendix B to Ind AS 21-Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration (Effective April 1, 2018 ) which clarifies the date of transaction for the
purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign
currency. The effect on account of adoption of this amendment was insignificant.

4.10 Investments in subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates

The Company records the investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying
amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount.

When the Company issues financial guarantees on behalf of subsidiaries, initially it measures
the financial guarantees at their fair values and subsequently measures at the higher of the
amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the
amount recognized less cumulative amortization.

The Company records the initial fair value of financial guarantee as deemed investment with a
corresponding liability recorded as deferred revenue. Such deemed investment is added to the
carrying amount of investment in subsidiaries.

Deferred revenue is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the remaining period of
financial guarantee issued.

The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at cost (net of impairment, if
any) annually, or more frequently when there is indication for impairment. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for in the statement of
profit and loss.

4.11 Employees Benefits

Short term employee benefits: -

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be

R\are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the L‘eptsyrting



period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.
The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Long-Term employee benefits

Compensated expenses which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of
period in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date.

Post-employment obligations
i. Defined contribution plans
Provident Fund and employees’ state insurance schemes

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, which
is a defined contribution plan. Both the employee and the. employer make monthly
contributions to the plan at a predetermined rate (presently 12%) of the employees’ basic
salary. These contributions are made to the fund administered and managed by the
Government of India. In addition, some employees of the Company are covered under the
employees’ state insurance schemes, which are also defined contribution schemes recognized
and administered by the Government of India.

The Company’s contributions to both these schemes are expensed in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. The Company has no further obligations under these plans beyond its monthly
contributions.

ii. Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity obligations through a defined benefit retirement plan (the
‘Gratuity Plan’) covering all employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to
vested employees at retirement or termination of employment based on the respective
employee salary and years of employment with the Company. The Company provides for the
Gratuity Plan based on actuarial valuations in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 19
(revised), “Employee Benefits “. The present value of obligation under gratuity is determined
based on actuarial valuation using Project Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of
service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit
separately to build up the final obligation.

Defined retirement benefit plans comprising of gratuity, un-availed leave, post-retirement
medical benefits and other terminal benefits, are recognized based on the present value of
defined benefit obligation which is computed using the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. These are
accounted either as current employee cost or included in cost of assets as permitted.

Leave Encashment

The company has provided for the liability at period end on account of un-availed earned leave
as per the actuarial valuation as per the Projected Unit Credit Method. '




The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset
ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest as defined
above),are recognized in other comprehensive income except those included in cost of assets
as permitted in the period in which they occur and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Financial Statements represents the actual
deficit or surplus in the Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this
calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of
reductions in future contributions to the plans.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

4.12 Taxation

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s
taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses, if any.

The current incomie tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
Financial Statement. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognized only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognized for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries, where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Delersed tax assets are not recognized for temporary differences between the carrying amount
ap?‘/"*ﬁ\bu\its of investments in subsidiaries, associates and interest in joint arrangements‘



where it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will not be available against which the temporary difference can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally

. enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred Tax includes MAT tax Credit. The Company recognizes tax credit in the nature of MAT
credit as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay
normal income tax during the specified period, i.e. the period for which tax credit is allowed to
be carried forward. The Company reviews the such tax credit asset at each reporting date to
assess its recoverability.

4.13 Leases

As a lessee
The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The
Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:
i.  the contract involves the use of an identified asset
fi. the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
through the period of the lease and
iii. ~ the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU")
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for
leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these
short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end
of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably
certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of
the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over

the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are
evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount (ie. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in- -use)- Ls-‘_
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largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of
these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related
right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension
or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

As a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and
the sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to
the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e.,
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Earnings Per Share

The Company presents the Basic and Diluted EPS data. Basic earnings per share are computed
by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after tax by the
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and
also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Segment Repoi'ting

Identification of segments:

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal financial reporting

prov1/u;&\ w0 the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) i.e. Board of Directors. CODM monitors
per'ﬂ-m \sesults of all product segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
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about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated
based on profit and loss and is measured consistently with profit and loss in the financial
statements. The primary reporting of the Company has been performed on the basis of business
segments. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the areas in which the Company's
products are sold or services are rendered.

Allocation of common costs:
Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of

each segment to the total common costs.

Unallocated items:

The Corporate and other segment include general corporate income and expense items, which
are not allocated to any business segment.

Provision, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows.

ARO are recognised for those operating lease arrangements where the Company has an
obligation at the end of the lease period to restore the leased premises in a condition similar to
inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the
obligation and are recognised as part of the cost of that particular asset. The estimated future
costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and any changes in the estimated future costs
or in the discount rate applied are adjusted from the cost of the asset.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts,
unless possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit is remote.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-
term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
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4.18 Exceptional Items

Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense within the statement of profit and loss
from ordinary activities which are non-recurring and are of such size, nature or incidence that
their separate disclosure is considered necessary to explain the performance of the Company.

4.19 Amendments to Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) issued notifications dated 24th March, 2021 to amend
Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 to enhance the disclosures required to be made by the
Company in its financial statements. These amendments are applicable to the Company for the
financial year starting 1st April, 2021 and applied to the standalone financial statements:

a.

Certain additional disclosures in the standalone Statement of Changes in Equity such as
changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors and restated balances at the
beginning of the current reporting period.

Additional disclosure for shareholding of promoters.

Additional disclosure for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-
in-progress.

Specific disclosure such as compliance with approved schemes of arrangements, compliance
with number of layers of companies, title deeds of immovable property not held in the name
of the Company, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel
(KMP) and related parties etc.

Additional disclosure relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and undisclosed
income.




Nexg Devices Private Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31,2022

Property, Plant and equijyment "PPE"

{Rs. in Lakhs)

‘ Particulars Servers Computers Office Equipment | Furniture & Fixture | Vehicles | Total ‘
Gross Carrying Value il i - T |
AsatApril 01,2020 101.62 44,52 7.98 2.74 120.89 277.75
Additions - 1.30 3 - 1.30
Less: Disposals / Adjustments - - - - |
AsatMarch 31, 2021 101.62 45.82 7.98 2.74 120.89 279.05
Additions - 15.06 1.07 - 16.13
Less: Disposals / Adjustments ‘ - - - ‘ -
As atMarch 31, 2022 101.62 60.88 9.05 2.74 120.89 | 295.18
Accumulated depreciation and impairment Servers Computers Office Equipment | Furnityre & Fixture Vehicles Total
As at April 01,2020 44.00 35.88 4.69 0.81 37.90 123.28 |
Deprectation for the year 16.09 319 127 0.26 1436 35.27 |
Less: Disposals / Adjustments - - - -
AsatMarch 31, 2021 60.09 39.07 6.06 1.07 52.26 158.55
Depreciation for the year 16.09 5.64 1.38 0.26 -14.36 37.73
Less: Disposals / Adjustments 1 - - -
As atMarch 31 2022 76.17 44.71 7.44 1.33 66.62 196.28 |
2 e TN 0 hotee - |
Net Carrying Value Servers Computers Office Equipment | Furniture & Fixture Vehicles Total
As at April 01,2020 57.62 8.64 | 329 1.93 82.99 15447 |
As at March 31, 2021 41.53 6.75 1.92 1.67 68.63 120.50 ‘
As at March 31,2022 | 25451 1617 | X 1.61 . 1.41 54.27 | 98.91 |
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Nexg Devices Private Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31,2022

The Following is carrying value of Right-of-use assets for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Building Secun.ty Total
Deposit

Asat April 01, 2020 135.34 - 135.34
Additions

Reclassified from Security Deposits - 3.73 3.73
Deletion

Dereciation 52.39 . 176 54.15
As at March 31,2021 82.95. 1.97 84.92
Additions

Lease Addition during the year - - -
Deletion

Depreciation 52.39 1.24 53.63
As at March 31, 2022 30.56 0.73 31.29

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under de
and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022.

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease Habilities as at March 31 ,2022
Particulars GEIEC GOET
March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Current Lease Liabilities 34.18 54.34
Non-current Lease Liabilities - 34.18
Total 34.18 88.52

The following is the carrying value of lease liability for the year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars Total j
As at April 01, 2020 137.92
Additions
Finance cost accrued during the year 10.60
Deletions
Payment of lease liabilities including interest during the vear 60.00
As at March 31,2021 88.52
Additions
Finance cost accrued during the year 5.66
Deletions
Payment of lease liabilities including interest during the year 60.00
|As at March 31, 2022 34.18

Note:

preciation and amortization expense in statement of Profit

(a) The Company incurred Rs. 4.87 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 41.82 Lakhs) towards expenses
relating to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The total cash outflow for leases is Rs. 64.87 lakhs for the year ended
March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 101.82 Lakhs), including cash outflow of short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
Interest on lease liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2022 is Rs. 5.66 Lakhs (March 31, 2021: Rs. 10.60 Lakhs).

(b) Lease contracts entered by the Company majorly pertains for buildings taken on lease to conduct its business in the ordinary
course., The Company have taken land and buildings on leases for offices and warehouse facilities.

(c) The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is 10%

(d) The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to

meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.




Nexg Devices Private Limited -
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31,2022

(Rs. in Lakhs)
7 Intangible Assets

Particulars Software Total
Gross Carrying Value
As at April 01,2020 1.57 1.57
Additions - -
Less: Disposals / Adjustments - -
As at March 31, 2021 1.57 1.57
Additions - -
Less: Disposals / Adjustments - -
As at March 31, 2022 1.57 1.57
Accumulated depreciation and impairment Software Total
As at April 01, 2020 0.58 0.58
Amortisation for the year 0.50 0.50
Less: Disposals / Adjustments - -
As at March 31, 2021 1.08 1.08
Amortisation for the year 0.41 0.41
Less: Disposals / Adjustments - -
As at March 31, 2022 1.49 1.49
Net Carrying Value Software Total

- |As at April 01, 2020 0.98 0.98
As at March 31, 2021 0.49 0.49
As at March 31, 2022 0.08 0.08




Nexg Devices Private Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31,2022

8 Non- Current Financial Assets - Loans

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars LEEL et
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Loans and Advances to Body Corjiorate - Considered Good-Unsecured 4,288.00 2,240.00
Total 4,288.00 2,240.00

1. Loans given to body corporates carrying rate of Interest at 9% .

2. There are no Loans due by Directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally or jointly with any
other person or amounts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director

or a member.

9 Non-Current Financial Assets - Others

Particulars St Pl
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Fixed Deposits with Bank (Maturity more than 12 months)* 60.95 11.58
Security Deposits, Unsecured, considered good; 1545 1291
Total 76.40 24.49

* Represents margin money against borrowings, Guarantees and other commitments pledged with bank and other
authorities FDR Rs. 352.53 Lakhs Bank Guarantee Rs. 11.79 Lakhs (Previous year FDR Rs. 50.31 Lakhs Bank Guarantee Rs

13.90 Lakhs) to be read along with Note no 14

10 Deferred Tax Assets(Net)

Particulars G As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
A. Deferred Tax Assets
MAT Credit Entitlement 61.06 168.33
Disallowances under the Income Tax Act,1961
For Gratuity 2.02 0.95
For Leave Encashment 5.40 2.61
Lease Liability 11.41 35.41
(A) 79.89 207.30
B. Deferred Tax Liability
Relatedto Depreciation on Fixed Assets and Amortisation 7.03 10.06
Right of Use Assets 10.20 33.56
(B) 17.23 43.62
Net Deferred Tax Assets (A-B) 62.66 163.68
(Rs. in Lakhs)
The movement in deferred tax asset / (liabilities) during the Year ended March 31, 2022
. As at March 31, | Recognised in profit Ny AsatMarch 31,
Particulars 2021 g:n d Lossp Recognised in OCI 2022
Provision for Gratuity 0.95 1.34 (0.27) 2.02
Provision for Leave Encashment 261 2.79 5.40
Lease Liability 35.41 (24.00) 11.41
Property, plant and equipment and intangible (43.62) 26.39 (17.23)
assets (Including ROU Assets)
(4.65) 6.52 (0.27) 1.60
MAT Credit Entitlement 168.33 (107.27) 61.06
Total 163.68 (100.75) (0.27) 62.66

The movement in deferred tax asset / (liabilities) during the Year ended March 31,2021
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

. As at March 31, (Recognised in profit Il As at March 31,
Particulars 2020 and Loss Recognised in 0CI 2021
Provision for Gratuity 0.37 0.60 (0.02) 0.95
Provision for Leave Encashment 1.03 1.58 - 2.61
Lease Liability - 35.41 - 35.41
Unabsorbed depreciation/Business Losses 356.26 (356.26) -
Property, plant and equipment and intangible (11.50) (32.12) - (43.62)
assets (Including ROU Assets)
346.16 (350.79) (0.02) (4.65)
MAT Credit Entitlement 403.59 [235.26) 168.33
Total 749.75 (586.05) (0.02) 163.68 |
11 Inventories
Particulars e gsat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Stock In Trade 1,408.30 2,588.76
(Mobile Handsets, routers, sadgets etc. |
Total 1,408.30 2,588.76
12 Trade Receivables
. As at Asat
A March 31,2022 | March 31,2021
Trade Receivables considered good - Secured;
Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured; 7,755.58 3,662.93
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired - -
7,755.58 3,662.93
Less : Impairment allowance for trade receivables ) - -
L Total 7,755.58 | 3,662.93
12.1 The movement in allowances for doubtful debts is as under: -
Particulars Asat ok
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

@pening Balance
Additions
Write Off (net of recovery)

Closing balance

12.2 In determining the allowance for trade receivables the Company has used practical expedients based on financial
condition of the customers, ageing of the customer receivables and over-dues, availability of collaterals and historical
experience of collections from customers. The concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables is reasonably low as

most of the customers are B2B (large Corporates) organisations.
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13

12.3 Additional Information
Trade receivables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2022

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particular

Unhilled Receivables| NotDue Outstanding forfollowing perieds from Bill ate

Le&sthanémonms! Gmonths-1 ear |

1vems | 23veas | Morethan3iears Total

Undisputed Trade Receivables

i) onsideredsod : 66387 &3
(i) Which have sizniicant increase incredit risk :

(i) Credit impaired

Disputed Trade Receivables

{i Considered good

(i) Which have sianificant increase i creditrisk
il Creditim-aired

1|

775558 |

\Less: I airment allowance for trade receivables

[

]

Trade receivables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2021

‘ Particular

Outstanding for ollowing periods from BiflDate

‘Unhilledkeceivables‘ Not Dug
|

Less than 6 months | 6 months -1 vear

12 vears 23 gars More than 3 vears Total

Undisputed Trade Recefvables

(1 Considered good . ‘ 366135
(i) Which have sionificant increase in credit risk - ‘ -
(i) Crecit impaired . |

Disputed Trade Receivables

|[1] Considered good - ‘

(i) Which have signifcant increase n credit risk - : ‘

il Credit im aired :

o
14 :

366294

Less - im airmentallowance for tradz receivables

12.4 Refer note no. 44 for information about receivables from related party

12.5 No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with

any other person.

12.6 No trade receivables are due from firms or private companies -respéctivély in which any director is a partner, a
director or a member except Rs. 2.23 Lakhs receivable from Digivive Services Private Limited in which Company's

directors are director.

12.7 Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30-60 days.

Cash and Cash Equivalents ("C & CE'™")

Particulars g T A AL
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balances with banks - In Current accounts* 256.05 1,323.66
Cash on hand 0.53 0.54
Fixed Deposits
- Maturitv less than 3 months 230.35 12.14
Total 486.93 1,336.34

*Includes amount of Rs. 0.27 Lakhs (PY- NIL) related to Unspent CSR amount kept in separate bank account as per

provision of 135(6) of Companies Act, 2013
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14 Other Bank Balances

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31,2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Fixed Deposits*
- Maturitv more than 3 months and upto 12 months

73.02

52.63

Total

73.02

52.63

* Represents margin money against borrowings, Guarantees and other commitments pledged with bank and other
authorities FDR Rs. 352.53 Lakhs Bank Guarantee Rs. 11.79 Lakhs (Previous year FDR Rs. 50.31 Lakhs Bank Guarantee Rs

13.90 Lakhs) to be read along with Note no 9

15 Current Financial Assets - Loans

Particulars GEIEL: gl
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Unsecured, considered good;
Loans and Advances to Body Corporate - 50.00
- 50.00
Less: Impairement allowance for Loan & Advance receivable
Total - 50.00
16 Current Financial Assets - Others -
. As at As at
Earticsls March31,2022 | March 31,2021
Interest accrued:
On Fixed Deposits with Banks 2.46 0.34
| On Loan to Body Corporate - 104.14
Advance for Purchase of Investment* - 12,000.00
Securitv Deposits, Unsecured, considered 2ood** 405.07 406.21
Total 407.53 12,510.69

* During the year, advance for Purchase of Investment of Rs. 12,000 Lakhs made by the Company into Nexg Ventures
India Private Limited (In which Company's director is a director) has been converted into 12,000,000 Unsecured Zero
Coupon Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures at face value of Rs. 100/- each. During the Year, aforesaid instruments

have been sold at par.

# Security Deposits primarily include deposits given to suppliers, rented premises and tax authorities.
p p y g pp P

17 Current Tax Assets (Net)

Particulars PO AL
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Advance Income Tax/TDS Recoverable (net of provisions) 75.42 42.70
Total 75.42 42.70
18 Other Current Assets
g’ Asat Asat
Partenae March 31,2022 | March 31,2021
Prepaid Expenses 3.76 2.05
Advances to Suppliers 343.71 511.14
Balance with Government Authorities 356.46 620.43
Advance Recoverable in Cash or Kind 3.92 -
Total 707.85 1,133.62

member.
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22

23

24

25

Non-Current - Borrowings

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Secured
Term Loan from Banks* - 4.36
Unsecured
Loan from Body Corporates # 1,331.20 - |
Total 1,331.20 4.36 |

* Vehicle Loan of Rs. 4.36 lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 11.08 lakhs) are secured by way of hypothecation of respective vehicles. These
loans are repayable in equated monthly installments and shall be repaid by 2023. Interest rates on above vary from 8-

'8.5% p.a.
Repayvment Schedule Amount
2022-23 4.36
# Carrying Interest Rate of 9% P.A. and principal is repayable on April 30, 2023.
Non-Current Liabilities - Provision
. Asat Asat
Rapttylars March 31,2022 | March 31,2021
Provision for Employee Benefits*
Leave Encashment 2.02 4.04
|__Gratuity ) 5.85 2.70 |
Total , 14.87 6.74 |
* Refer note no. 39 for movement of provision towards employee benefit (as per Actuarial Certificate)
Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings o
m Particulars asat Gl
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Loans repayable on demand
From Banks - Working Capital Limits - Secured* 3,534.59 1,658.82
Loan from Body Corporate # 2,500.00 -
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debts** 4.36 6.72
Total 6,038.95 1,665.54

Note:

* Secured by charge on all existing and future receivables/current assets/moveables assets/moveable fixed assets and
corporate guarantee of NexG Ventures India Private Limited, Media Matrix Worldwide Limited, Infotel Business Solutions

Limited at Interest Rate of MCLR+0.85.

# Carrying Interest Rate of 5% P.A. and principal is repayable on October 31, 2022.

** Pursuant to Notification dated 24.03.2021 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, current maturity of long term debts
have been classified as Short Term Borrowings instead of Other Current Liabilities. Consequently, Short Term Borrowings
are increased and Other Current Liabilities are reduced by Rs. 4.36 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 6.72 Lakhs)

Trade Payables
Particulars Apat Agat
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises ;* - -
total ou.tstandmg dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 2,850.00 17.374.23
enterprises. P -

SR LN Total [2/ \S 2,850.00 17,374.23

,;“/ @\ [~ '
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*Refer Note no. 40

Trade Payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2022

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs.InLaks) |
Particutar Qutstanding for following periods from transaction date '
Unbilled Payables Not Due | '
Less than 1 year 1-2years 23 years More than 3 years Total ‘
()54 : : i
(1} Others 1974 283026 ‘ 283000
(1) Disputed dues - MSME . . ‘
|iv] Disguted dues - Others l : ‘
Trade Payables ageing schedule as at March 31,2021
(Rs. In Lakhs| |
Particular | Outstanding for following periods from transaction date
ilted Payabl N
Gt T e Less than 1 year 1-2years 23 years More than 3 years Total ‘
(1) MSME " L] . .
(ii) Others 1737348 083 1737423
(] Disputed dues - MSME . :
|iv Disouted dues - Others - |
26 Current Financial Liabilities - Others
Particulars R Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest Accrued but not Due 46.23 -
Security Deposit 368.24 368.24
Other Payables
- Salaries, Wages and other payable 37.18 12.21
- Expenses Pavable 1.65 20.98
| Total 453.30 401.43
27 Current Liabilities - Others
. As at As at
Faiiculars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Advance from Customers 70.49 96.48
Statutorv Dues Pavable 58.86 47.03
Total 129.35 143.51
28 Current Liabilities - Provision
Particulars Asat At
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Provision for Employee Benefits*
Gratuity 0.19 0.01
Leave Encashment 7.16 3.43
Total 7.35 3.44

* Refer note no. 39 for movement of provision towards employee benefit (as per Actuarial Certificate)
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(Rs. In Lakhs, Except no. of Shares and Debentures)

19  Share Capital

(i) Equity Share Capital

Particulars a2y Asgt

: March 31, 2022 . March'31, 2021
Authorised Shares
1,00,00,000 (PY:1,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 1,000.00 1,000.00
Total 1,000.00 1,000.00
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid-up shares
97,80,000 (PY:97,80,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 978.00 978.00
Total 978.00 978.00

19.1 Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares havin

shares is entitled to cast one vote per share.

19.2 Reconciliation of Equity Shares outstanding:

g par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity

Particulars - Asat At
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Number of shares at the beginning of the Year 97,80,000 97,80,000
Add: Shares issued during the year - -
Number of shares at the end of the Year 97,80,000 97,80,000
19.3 Shareholders holding more than 5 percent of Equity Shares in the Company
As at As at
Njiee! Shazelolder, March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
R No. of share held No. of share held
Media Matrix Worldwide Limited * 49,90,000 49,90,000
% of Holding 51.02% 51.02%
Infotel Business Solutions Limited 40,40,000 40,40,000
% of Holding 41.31% 41.31%
Media Matrix Enterprises Pvt Ltd 7,50,000 7,50,000
% of Holding 7.67% 7.67%

19.4 Details of shareholding of promoters

* 4 Shares are held by four individuals as nominees of the Holding Company.

% change during

s. No Shares held by promoters at the vear ended March 31,2022
e Promoter’s Name No. of shares | 9% of total shares the year
1| Media Matrix Worldwide Limited * 49,90,000 51.02 -
2| Infotel Business Solutions Limited 40,40,000 41.31 -
3| Media Matrix Enterprises Private Limited 7,50,000 7.67 =
* 4 Shares are held by four individuals as nominees of the Holding Company.
S. No Shares held by promoters at the year ended March 31,2021 % change during
o Promoter’s Name No. of shares | 9% of total shares the year
1| Media Matrix Worldwide Limited * 49,90,000 51.02 -
2| Infotel Business Solutions Limited 40,40,000 41.31 -
3| Media Matrix Enterprises Private Limited 7,50,000 7.67 =

* 4 Shares are held by four individuals as nominees of the Holding Company.
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(Rs. In Lakhs, Except no. of Shares and Debentures)

Instruments Entirely Equity in Nature

{(a) Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (ccps)

Particulars et Saas
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Authorised Shares i )
10,00,000 (PY: 10,900,000 Preference Share of Rs.100/- each 1,000.00 1,000.00
Total o 1,000.00 1,000.00
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid-up shares
10,00,000 (PY: 10,00,000) 0.01% Compulsorily Convertible
Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs.100/- each 100000 1,000.00
Total , 1,000.00 | 1,000.00
(b) Compulscrily Convertible Debentures (CCDS)
. As at As at
| Rthcass March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
172,836 (PY: 172,836) Zero% Compulsorily Convertible
Debentures (CCD’s) of Rs.1000/ - each 1,728.36 1,728.36
Total 1,728.36 1,728.36

20.1

20.2

20.3

(a) Terms/rights attached to preference shares

10,00,000 , 0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share (CCPS) of face value of Rs 100/- each were
allotted on preferential basis in pursuance to the conversion of Unsecured Zero Coupon Compulsorily
Convertible Debenture'(CCDs) into CCPS. The allotted CCPS shall be compulsorily contervitable into equity
share of the Company and post conversion the equity share so allotted shall rank pari passu with the then

existing Equity Share of the Company.

(b) Terms/rights attached to Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDS)
The Company has issued 1,72,836 Zero% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCD’s) of Rs.1000/- each fully
paid up amounting to Rs.1728.36 Lakhs on dated 31.03.2014, which would be converted into equity shares after
9 years from the date of allotment. Each CCD of Rs. 1000 each will be convertible into 100 equity shares of Rs. 10

each of the Company.

(2) Reconciliation of 0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Preferance Share (CCPS) outstanding:

Particulars Asat G
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Number of shares at the beginning of the Year i 10,00,000 -
Add: Shares issued during the vear - 10,00,000
Number of shares at the end of the Year 10,00,000 10,00,000
(b) Reconciliation of 0% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDS) outstanding:
. Asat As at
e ears March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Number of Debentures at the beginning of the Year 1,72,836 1,72,836
Add: Debentures issued during the vear - -
Number of Debentures at the end of the Year 1,72,836 1,72,836

(a) Shareholders holding more than 5 percent of 0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Preferance Share
(CcPs)
As at Asat
Name of Shareholder March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
No. of share held No. of share held
Media Matrix Enterprises Private Limited 10,00,000 10,00,000
% of Holding 100.00% 100.401%6]"

ECS
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(Rs. In Lakhs, Except no. of Shares and Debentures)

(b) Debentureholders holding more than 5 percent of 0% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDS)

Name of Shareholder

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31,2021

No. of Debentures held

No. of Debentures held

" Media Matrix Worldwide Limited

% of Holding

1,72,836
100.00%

1,72,836
100.00%

20.4 (a) Promoters holding of 0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share (ccps)

0.07% Compulserily Convertible Preference Share (CCPS) Tield by )
S. No. promoters at the year ended March 31, 2022 % change during
Promoter’s Name No. of shares | % of total shares e
1 |Media Matrix Enterprises Private Limited 1000600 100 -
0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share (CCPS) held by
S. No. promoters at the year ended March 31, 2021 % change during
Promoter’s Name No. of shares | % of total shares LT
1 |Media Matrix Enterprises Private Limited 1000000 100 -

(b) Promoters holding of 0% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDS)

S. No.

vear ended March 31, 2022

0% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDS) held by promoters at the

Promoter’s Name

No. of shares

% of total shares

% change during
the year

1 | Media Matrix Worldwide Limited

172836

100

vear ended March 31, 2021

U% Compulisorily Convertible Debentures [CCDS] hield by promoters ai (he

% change during

S. No. th
Promoter’s Name No. of shares | 9% of total shares - € ygar
1 Media Matrix Worldwide Limited 172836 100 -
21 QOther Equity
Asat Asat
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Retained Earnings 906.41 617.62
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total 906.41 617.62
(i) Retained Earnings
Particulars Asat asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Opening Balance 617.62 164.55
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting year - -
Net profit/(loss) for the year 289.86 451.87
Transfer from Other Comprehensive income 1.28
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in
retained earnings

Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans

(net of tax) (1.07] (0.08)

906.41 617.62
= \/
\ A
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(Rs. In Lakhs, Except no. of Shares and Debentures)

(ii) Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars s at R
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Opening Balance - 1.28
Items of Other Comprehensive Income
| Remeasurement of Defined benefit plans - -
|Transfer to retained earnings - (1.28]
Closing Balance - -

The Description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows:

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to dividends or other

distributions paid to shareholders.
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29

30

31

32

33

34

Revenue from operations

(Rs. in Lakhs)

March 31, 2022

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Sale of Products 57,576.80 1,10,792.46
Sale of Services 252.54 : 0.04
L Total 57,829.34 | 1,10,792.5¢ |
‘Other Income
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021

Interest Income

From Fixed Deposits 9.34 2.44
From Inter-Corporate Deposits 598.46 352.84
Gain on fair valuation of Security Deposit 1.29 1.64
Balances Written Back (net) 9.92 . 0.09
Misc. Income - 1.99
Total 619.01 359.00
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 54,199.21 1,09,467.71
. Total 54,199.21 1,09,467.71
Changes In Inventories of Stock-in-Trade
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Opening Stock 2,588.76 680.07
Less: Closing Stock - 1,408.30 2,588.76
1,180.46 (1,908.69)
Emplovee benefits expense
Particulars For the year endedd For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Salaries and Bonus 440.37 261.34
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 17.29 8.19
Manpower Qutsource Salary 6.23 27.05
Staff Welfare Expenses 6.53 3.35
Total 470.42 299.93
Finance Costs o
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest on Loan from Body Corportaes 180.83 55.63
Interest on Bank Borrowings 109.07 69.39
Interest to Others 0.60 0.30
Interest on GST/ TDS 2.72 -
Interest on Lease Liabilities 5.66 10.60
Bank Charges and Processing fees 64.63 3842
| Total 363.51 174.34

%
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35 Selling & Distribution Expenses

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended |
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Discount, Rebate & Sales Supports Expenses 216.95 341.46
Business Promotion 1549 9.26
Packing & Forwarding Charges 8.65 8.24
Freizht, Cartaze & Octroi B 335.951___ 241.65
Total 577.04 | 600.61 |
36 Other Expenses
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rent 4.87 41.82
Rates and Taxes 14.39 19.24
Insurance Expenses 37.80 17.82
Professional Charges 627.18 567.40
Payments to the Auditor -
Audit Fees 5.50 2.50
Taxation Matters - -
Other Services 0.15 0.05
Out of Pocket Expenses 0.20 0.26
Electricity Expenses - 1.64
Business Support Service 16.71 65.53
Communication expenses 1.50 1.14
Postage & Courier Expenses 0.32 0.18
Travelling, Conveyance and Vehicle Expenses 24.08 18.00
Donation 100.00
Commission Expenses 114.37 233.18
Printing & Stationery 0.67 1.03
CSR Expenses 21.32 14.11
Repair & Maintanence Expenses 5.22 | 14.09
IT & Network Expenses 102.33 | 167.76
Balance Written Off (net) - 4.25
|Loss on foreign currency transaction and translation | net| 3.10 - -
- Total - 1,079.71 1,170.00
37 Earning per Share (EPS) - In accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-33)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
L - o
Basic Earnings Per Share
Profit /(Loss) After Tax 289.86 451.87
Profit Attributable to Ordinary Shareholders 289.86 451.87
|  Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares 97,80,000 97,80,000
| (used as denominator for calculating basic EPS)
| Nominal Value of Ordinary Equity Share Rs.10/- Rs.10/-
| Earnings Per Share - Basic 2.96 4.62
Diluted Earnings Per Share
Profit /(Loss) After Tax 289.86 451.87
Profit Attributable to Ordinary Shareholders 289.86 451.87
Potential equity shares 2,72,83,600 2,72,83,600
Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares 3,70,63,600 3,70,63,600
(used as denominator for calculating diluted EPS)
Nominal Value of Ordinary Equity Share Rs.10/- ~Mts. 10/-
Earnings per share - Diluted (Calculated) 0.78 /A \1.22
 Earnings#ETshave - Diluted 078 | /o/ | \®.1.22
"l*¢ | ( \
N
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39

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Critical accounting estimates and judgments
The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the said financial statements are continuously evaluated by the Company, and are based on
historical experience and various other assumptions'and factors (including expectations of future events), that the Company believes to be reasonable under
the existing circumstances. The said estimates and judgements are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after
that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date.
Although the Company regularly assesses these estimates, actual results could differ materially from these estimates - even if the assumptions under-lying
such estimates were reasonable when made, if these results differ from historical experience or other assumptions do not turn out to be substantially
accurate. The changes in estimates are recognised in the financial statements in the period in which they become kriown.

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of receivables, tangible
and intangible assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic,
the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information on the expected future
performance of the Company. The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on current estimates expects the carrying
amount of these assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of
approval of these financial statements,

The areas Involving critical estimates or judgments are:

1. Useful lives of property, plant and equipments Note No. 4.2 & 5

2. Judgement required for ascertainment of contracts in the rature of lease, lease term and fair value of lease as per Ind AS 116 4.13 & 6
3. Useful life of intangible asset Note No. 4.3 & 7

4. Taxes Note No. 4.12 & 10,17

5. Measurement defined benefit obligation Note No. 4.11 & 39

6. Estimation of Provisions & Contingent liabilitics Note No. 4.16 & 41

During the year, Company has recognised the following amounts in the financial statements as per Ind AS - 19 "Employees Benefits"

a) Defined Contribution Plan
Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, maintained under the Emplovees Provident Fund Scheme by the Central Government, is charged to Profit and
Loss Account as under:

For the year For the year,

Particulars ended March 31,/ ended March 31,

| 2022 2021/
\Emyployer's Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds | 1712 | 7.63

b) Defined Benefit Plan

The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service
as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation for leave
encashment is recognized in the same manner as gratuity.

[’ Gratuity Leave Encasliment
For the year For the year | For the year
‘ ey ended March 31, | ended March 31, F(;; thehyg :r;:;; . ended March
A = 2022 2021 el L 11,2021
100% of IALM | 100% of IALM 100% of IALM | 100% of IALM_
|Mortalit, | i2012-14) 12012-14| 2012-14) | [2012-14]
|Discount rate - 5.75%| 550% _ 5.75% 5.50%
|Rate of increase in compensation levels - 6.00% | 6.00% 6.00%  6.00%!
Table showing changes in present value of obligations : ) R
Present value of the obli:ation as at the bevinnin: of the . ear 2.71 145 | 7.47 411 |
Interest Cost - E | 0.16 0.08 | 043 0.23
|Current Service Cost ] | 237 112 ) 7.16 312 |
Past Service Cost includin;: curtailment Gains 'Losses - - -
Benefits paid 1 - | 10.39
Actuarial (:ain|  loss on oblii;ations 0.81 0.06 1.52 | 0.02 |
| Present value of obli::ation as at the end of the vear 6.04 | 271 16.18 | 747 |
Other Comprehensive Income = = - o
| Net cumulative unrecounized actuarial (::1in)/loss of enin;; 0.971] 1.03)] - | -
Actuarial [ ;ain| / loss for the vear on PBO 0.81 | 0.06 | |
Actuarial [ain| | loss recoznized for the year on Assets - - = |
Cumulative total actuarial (zain| loss at the end of the sear ' 10.161] 10.971] = = |
‘The amounts to be recognized in Balance Sheet ; - - -
Present value of obli;ation at the end of the vear 6.04 | 271 | 16.18 747 |
Fair value of ]an assets at the end of the vear - | -
Net liabilit' /| asset| reconized in Balance Sheet 6.04 | 271 | 16.18 747
Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss :
| Current service cost | - 237 112 7.16 3.12
Interest cost 0.16 008 043 0.23 |
Net actuarial |zain | / loss reconised in the vear I = i 152 0.02 |
Ex|'enses reco:nized in the profit & loss 2.52 1.20 9.11 336
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(Rs. in Lakhs)
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

OtolYear 0.19 0.01 |

1to 2 Year ) 0.50 0.10

2to 3 Year 0.44 0.18

3 to 4 Year 0.41 0.21

4to 5 Year 0.58 0.20

5 Year onwards 3.92 2.02

Sensitivity Analysis

Impact of the change in discount rate

Present Value of Obligation at the end of the vear _ 6.04 2.71 16181 747
Impact due to increase of 1% 10.211 10.101) (0.41} 10.19)
Impact due to decrease of 1% 0.22 0.10 0.44 0.21

Impact of the change in salary increase

Present Value of Obligation at the end of the year 6.04 2.71 16.18 7.47
Impiact due to increase of 1% 0.22 0.10 0.44 0.20
Impact due to decrease of 1% 10.211 10.101 10.41) 10.19}

Impact of the change in withdrawl rate

Present Value of Obligation at the end of the vear 6.04 2.71 16.18 7.47
Impact due to increase of 1% 10.14) 10.08) 10.001 10.00}
Impact due to decrease of 1% 0.14 0.08 0.00 0.00

Disclosure required under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {the Act) are given as follows :

Particulars || As at March 31, | As at March 31,

2022 2021

Principal amount due
Interest due on above B
Interest paid during the period beyond the appointed day - -
Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment without adding
the interest specified under the Act. . -
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the period

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to small enterprises for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Sec.23 of the Act -

Note: The above information and that is given in ‘Note-25' Trade Payables regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined on the basis of
information available with the Company and has been relied upon by the auditors.

Commitments and Contingencies

Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of :

Particulars As at Asat
March 31,2022 | March 31,2021

Guarantees issued by Banks - 50.00
Letter of Credit issued by Banks 2,973.87 975.53
Claim against the Company not acknowledge as Debt

Sales Tax Authorities - 0.83

The Cogrpany’s pending litigations comprise of claims against the Company and proceedings rending with Tax Authorities / Statutory Authorities. The
Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has made adequate provisions, wherever required and disclosed the contingent
liabilities, wherever applicable, in its financial statements, The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a material impact on its
financial nosition.

The Company periodically reviews all its long term contracts to assess for any material foreseeable losses. Based on such review wherever applicable, the
Company has made adequate provisions for these long term contracts in the books of account as required under any applicable law/accounting standard.

As at March 31, 2022 the Company did not have any outstanding long term derivative contracts.

In the opinion of the Board and of the best of their knowledge and belief, the value of realization in respect of the Current Assets, Loans and advances in the
ordinary course of business would not be less than the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet and the provision for all known and determined
liabilities is adequate and not in excess of amount reasonably required.

Segmental Reporting

(a) Primary Segment Information

The Company's operating segments are established on the basis of those components of the Company that are evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating
Officer ( the 'Board of Directors' as defined in Ind AS 108 ~ ‘Operating Segments’) in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.The
CODM has identified business segments as its primary segment and geographic segments as its secondary segment. Accordingly segments have been
identified in line with Indian Accounting Standard on Segment Reporting 'Ind AS-108". The Company is mainly engaged in the trading business of mobile
phones & other electronic items and related services.There are no reportable business segment taking into account all the factors ,viz., the nature of product
and services ,identical risks and return ,the organization structure and the internal financial reporting system.

(b) Secondary segment information
Considering that the Company caters mainly to the needs of Indian market and the export turnover for the year ended March 31, 2022 is Rs. 298.35 Lakhs
(PY: Nil), there are no reportable geographical segments.
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44 Asrequired by Ind AS - 24 “Related Party Disclosures”

a) Name and déscription of related parties.-

[Name

| Relationship

|MN Ventures Private Limited (MNVPL|
Media Matrix Worldwide Limited  MMWL|

|Ultimate Holdin,® Comyany

[mmediate Holdin:: Company

Media Matrix Enter|irises Private Limited (MMEPL|
MN Televentures Private Limited | MNTPL) |

|Fellow Subsidiar

Infotel Business Solutions Limited [IBSL

| Fellow Subsidiar:

Associate Company

Mr. Sunil Batra | Manay;in;; Director|

Kev Managerial Persons [KMPs|

Mr. Sandee [airath | Chief Financial Officer

Ke. Managerial Persons | KMPs

|Mr. Shubham Vedi ceased on lul, 09, 2021 |Comjanv Secretar

Ke. Mana;erial Persons |(KMPs

Ms. Megha Mehta from February 01, 2022 (Compan. Secretar, |

Key Managerial Persons (KMPs

Digivision Ventures Private Limited

|Infotel Access Enterprises Private Ltd
MNVPL Projects Private Limited

' NexG Venture India Private Limited {NVIPL|

Significant Influence of KMP

|Significant Influence of KMP

|Significant Influence of KMP

‘Significant Influence of KMP

In-Touch Infotech Services Private Limited | [ISPL

Significant Influence of KMP

Mr. Shivam Batra I

b) Nature of transactions: -The transactions entered into with the related parties during the year along with outstanding balances as at March

31, 2022 are as under:

Relative of KMP

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
AL TRANACTIONS DURING THE YEAR ]
Sales - B —__|
MMEPL B 92,60
| IBSL 0.18 | 12,671.30 |
1ISPL = 0.67 0.50
MNTPL 65.98
NVIPL - 6,529.06
Purchase | 1
DVPL 3239
MMEPL 59.72 -
NVIPL - 4131
Sale of Investment o
MNTPL 5,200.00 B -
Investment in 0% Optionally Fully Convertible Debsl}tures _
NVIPL - | 12,00000 |
Redemption of 0% Optionally Fullv Convertible Debentures
NVIPL o 6,800.00
Advance for Purchase of Investment —
MNTPL - 6,000.00
NVIPL 12,000.00 |
Advance for Purchase of Investment received back 1
MNTPL 6,000.00
Loan Repaid
| MMEPL 590.00 121.50
MNVPL 4,359.25 8,972.00
IAEPL = 196.05 |
MNVPL Project Pvt Ltd B 2,245.00 | -
Loan Taken - 1
MMEPL 590.00 90.00
. MNVPL 4,459.50 8,972.00
 1AEPL 1,427.00 -
MNVPL Project Pvt Ltd 2,245.00
Loan Received Back |
NVIPL - 6,431.07 |
Interest Expense |
| MMEPL B 11.50 172
MNVPL 52.23 40.09 |
IAEPL B 72.67 -
MNVPL Prolect Pvt Ltd 2.80 |
| Interest Income o | i
NVIPL N Bl | 40.26
Professional Fees = R —
1ISPL 14.75 44.25
Shivam Batra 12.50 5.95
Sales Commission Charjes
IBSL 281.26
Business Sujiport Charges |
_IBSL o 19.72 77.33 |
Manpower Charges ]
1BSL 70.80 |

{Rs. in Lakhs)
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IT & Network Exprenses
IBSL 623 | 4.81
(Car Lease —
lISPL 7.84 7.84
GST Expense on commission on Corporate
Guarantee
MMWL 5.60 5.87
__NvIPL B 17.15 24.84
. IBSL 17.15 18.50
Reimbursement of Expenses B
| IISPL - R 0.38
lB]_BALANCES OUTSTANDING AS AT YEAR END
‘Trade Receivable
MMEPL 92.60
MNTPL 65.98
Advance for Purchase of Investment
NVIPL 12 000.00
| Borrowings
MNVPL 100.25 -
TAEPL 1.230.95 -
Interest Receivable
NVIPL 40.26
Trade Pavable
[ISPL 0.64 14.46
MMWL 5.60 5.87
IBSL 8.37 411.41

(Rs. in Lakhs)

KMP are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company, directly or indirectly,
including any director, whether executive or otherwise. Remuneration to key management personnel were as follows:

Particulars Managing Director Company Secretary
FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Short-term emplovee benefits 32.48 16.88 1.04
Performance linked incentive ['PLI’| - -
Post-employment benefit 2.40 1.47 0.10

Dividend paid

Commission paid

As the liabilities for the gratuity and compensated absences are provided on an actuarial basis, and calculated for the Company as a whole rather than each
of the individual employees, the said liabilities pertaining specifically to KMP are not known and hence, not included in the above table.

The Company has carried out an Impairment Test on its Fixed Assets as on 31.3.2022 and the Management is of the opinion that there is no asset for which

impairment is required to be made as per Ind AS 36 - "Impairment of Assets" (Previous year % Nil).

Corporate Social Responsibility expenses

Particulars F.Y.2021-22 F.Y. 2020-21
Gross amount to be spent by Company during the year 21.32 14.11
Unspent amount of previous year 15.48 6.38
Total 36.80 20.48
Amount spent during the year H -

Contribution of acquisition of assets - 0

On other purpose 35.21 5.00
Amount remaining unspent 1.59 1548

Balance amount of Rs. 1.32 Lakhs (CSR Unsepnt A/c Closing Balance as on 31.03.2022 Rs. 0.27 Lakhs) has been transfereed to a special account opened by
the company in a scheduled bank to be called the Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility Account on May 24, 2022, and such amount shall be spent by the
company in pursuance of its obligation towards the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy within a period of three financial years from the date of such

transfer.

Particulars

F.Y. 2021-22

F.Y.2020-21

Shortfall at the end of the year

Total of previous year shortfall

Reason for shortfall

Nature of CSR Activities

Detail of related party transactions in relation to CSR expenditure as per Ind
AS 24, Related Party Disclosures

Note 1

Note 1

Note 1 : Nature of CSR activity includes promoting health care including prevntive healthcare and Medical facility
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{Rs. in Lakhs)
_Details of onjoing CSR projects under Section 135(6] of the Act ]
Opening Balance Amount spent during the year Closing Balance |
] In Separate
Year In Separate CSR requiredtebe | From Company’s | From Separate .
Wi
ith Company Unspent A/c* spent during the bankA/c CSR Unspent A/c Lo CSR:/?: cnt

| vear |
12021-22 8.00 2132 | 12.52 | 15.21 - 1.59 |
2020-21 | | | I S

*For FY 2020-21, Amount of Rs. 8.00 Lakhs was transferred to the separate CSR account on June 10, 2021,
# For FY 2021-22, Amount of Rs. 1.32 Lakhs was transferred to the separate CSR account on May 24, 2022,

Details of CSR expenditure under Secﬁon 135(5] of the Actin respect of unspent amount

Ovenin Amount deposited Amount
P g in Specified Fund of | required to be Amount spent Closing Balance
Year Balance i .
Schedule VIl of the |spent during the| during the year unspent
unspent T
Act within 6 months year |
12021-22 748 | ) 7.48 | — |
[z020-21 638 14.11 5.00 | 15.48 |

Amount of INR 7.48 Lakhs was transferred to the separate CSR account on June 10, 2021,

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables, lease liabilities and financial guarantee contracts. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Company’s principal financial assets
include cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company’s business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risks and credit risk. The Company's senior
management has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework, The Company's risk
management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks
and adherence to limits, Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities,

Management of Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Company’s approach.to managing
liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this, management
considers both normal and stressed conditions.

The following table shows the maturity analysis of the Company's financial liabilities based on_contractually agreed undiscounted cash flows as at the

Dalammn Chant Aaka

|Particulars | Notes Nos. Lef::z:l‘:slz | 1to 5 Years | Above 5 Years Total
'As at March 31, 2022 o | R
Trade payables 25 2,850.00 2,850.00
|Borr<)wings ‘ 22.24 6,038.95 1.331.20 7.370.15
Lease Liabilities 6 34.18 - 34.18
Othet liabilities 26 453.30 453.30
|As at March 31, 2621
Trade payables 25 17,374.23 17,374.23
Borrowings 22,24 1,665.54 4.36 1,669.90
| Lease Liabilities 6 5434 34.18 - 88.52
- 401.43

| Other liabilities 26 401.43
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Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as ‘equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk
include loans and borrowings, deposits.
The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,

POTENTIAL IMPACT OF RISK ] MANAGEMENT PPLICY | SENSITIVITY TO RISK
INTEREST RATE RISK
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future|In order to manage its interest rate risk|As- an estimation of the approximate
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate|The Company diversifies its portfolic in|impact of the interest rate risk, with
because of -changes in market interest rates. The|accordance with the risk management|respect to, financial instruments, the
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market|policies. Company has calculated the impact of a
interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long- 1% change in Interest rates.
term debt as well as short-term obligations with a) A 1% increase in interest rates would
floating interest rates have led to approximately an additional
o . . . Rs. 3.64 lakhs gain for year ended March
a) Company has Fixed deposits with Banks amounting .
to Rs. 364.33/- lakh t March 31, 2022 (Rs. 76.35 31, 2022 (Rs. 0.76 lakhs gain for year
o -33/- lakhs as at Marc ! s ended March 31, 2021) in Interest
Lakhs as at March 31, 2021)

) income.’A 1% decrease in interest rates
Interest Income earned on fixed deposit for year ended would have led to an equal but opposite

March 31, 2022 is Rs. 9.34 Lakhs (Rs. 2.44 Lakhs as at effect.

March 31, 2021) ' b) A 1% increase in interest rates would
b) Company has Borrowing from Banks amounting to have led to approximately an additional
Rs. 3,538.95 Lakhs as at March 31, 2022 (Rs. 1,669.90 Rs, 35.38 lakhs loss for year ended March
Lakhs as at March 31, 2021) 31, 2022.(Rs. 16.69 lakhs loss for year
Interest Expenses on such borrwings for the year ended ended March -31, 2021) in Interest
March 31, 2022 is Rs. 109.07/- lakhs (Rs. 69.39/- lakhs expense. A 1% decrease in interest rates
for the vear ended March 31, 2021 would have led to an equal but opposite
Interest rate sensitivity has been calculated assuming the borrowings outstanding at the reporting date have been outstanding for the entire reporting
period. .

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its financing activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks
and other financial instruments.

Trade Receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company established policy, procedurss and control relating to customer credit risk
management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance
with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. At March 31, 2022, the Company had top 10 customers that owed the
Company more than Rs. 6372.60 lakhs (March 31, 2021: Rs. 3441.40 lakhs) and accounted for approximately 82.17% (March 31, 2021: 93.95%) cf all the
receivables outstanding.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are
grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value
of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 12. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with
respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several Jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets.

Financial Instruments and Cash Deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the management in‘accordance with the Company's policy. Counterparty credit
limits are reviewed by the management oh an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of
risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 is the carrying amounts as
illustrated in Note Note 8,9,14,15 and 16.

Capital Management »

Capital includes issued equity capital and Securities premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the
Company'’s capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. '

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Particulars Note No. INR INR
Borrowings* 6,22,24 7,404.33 1,758.42
Less : Cash and Cash equivalents 13 (486.93) (1,336.34)
Net Debt 6,917.41 422.08
Total Equity 4.612.77 4,323.98
Net Debt to Equity 149.96% 9.76%

* Includes Lease Liabilities
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial

covenants. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31,2021.
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[ . [ Mar-22 |
b Rapisuians | Level L FVTOCI | Amortised Cost |
1) Financial Assets [ ’ |
1) Loan Receivables (Note No.8,15) 3 4,288.00
‘ I1) Cash and Cash equivalents (Note No. 13) 1 - 486.93 |
[II) Other Bank balances (Note No. 9,14) 1 - 133.97
IV) Trade receivables (Note No. 12) ‘ 3 - | 7,755.58
V) Other receivables (Note No. 9, 16) P _ | - I 422.98
| Total financial assets - | B - | 13,087.46 |
|
1) Trade payables (Note No. 25) 3 | - i 2,850.00 |
1) Borrowings (Note No. 22,24) 3 7.370.15 |
111) Lease Liabilities (Note No. 6) 3 - | 34.18
1V) Other liabilities (Note No. 26) 3] - — —— 453.30 |
}ﬂal Financial liabilities = I | - - - 10.707.63<1
A Mar-21
| e g L ETTE I } goxel FVIPL | FVTOCI | Amortised Cost
1) Loan Receivables (Note No.8,15) 3 | 2,290.00 ‘
| 11) Cash and Cash equivalents (Note No. 13) 1 - 1,336.34
i 111) Other Bank balances (Note No. 9,14) ‘ 1 - 64.21 |
IV) Trade receivables (Note No, 12) 3 ‘ 3,662.93
V) Other receivables (Note No. 9, 16) - | - 1252360 |
‘ Total financial assets [ 1T - | 19877.08
I) Trade payables (Note No. 25) 3 ‘ 17,374.23
11) Borrowings (Note No. 22,24) 3 - 1,669.90
{I) Lease Liabilities (Note No. 6) 3 - 88,52
IV) Other liabilities (Note No. 26) 3 ‘ 40143 |
| Total Financial liabilities - = - - 19,534.08 |

1. Fair Value measurement
Fair Value Hierarchy and valuation technique used to determine fair value :

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used !

categorized into Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 inputs.

Disaggregation of Revenue

The Company’s primary business segment is trading of mobile & accessories, consumer durable and electronic items.

time and revepue is recognised upon satisfaction of the
evaluation policy based on which the credit limits for the
provided by the Company is not significant.

Reconciliation of revenue as recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss with the contracted price

Particulars | _FY202122 | FY2020-21 |
|Revenue as per contracted price 59,735.39 1,12,556.89
Less:
Trade Discount, Rebate, variable considration etc: 253.44 1,045.62
Sale Return i - | 1652.61 718.77 |
Revenue as per Statement of Profit & Loss (Ind AS-115) | 57,829.34 | 1,10,792.50 |
Disaggregated revenue recognised [n the Statement of Profit and Loss:
s “Particulars — | Fv2021:22 |  Fvzozozi |
iMobile Phone & Electronic [tenis 57.829.34 1,10,792.50
~ Total l 57,82934 | 1,10,792.50 |
Primary Geographical Markets in respect of revenue from sale of products as recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
Particulars FY2021-22 |  FY2020-21
'In India 57,530.98 | 1,10,792.50 |
Outside India 298.35 . -
| Total ~ 57,829.34 1,10,792.50 |
Disaggregited revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss : —
Particulars | FY2021-22 FY 2020-21
Related Party 0.85 19,359.44
‘gternal Customer 57,828.49 91433.06
[ - Total 57,829.34 110,792.50

A

(Rs. in Lakhs)

measure fair value that are either observable or unobservable and are

Sale of goods are made at a point in
performance obligations which is typicaily upon dispatch / delivery. The Company has a credit
trade receivables are established. There is no significant financing component as the credit period



Nexg Devices Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2022

50

51

52

Contract Balances

The followin : table |irovides information about receivables and contract liabilities from contract with customers:

= Particulars FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21 |
Contract liabilities
Advance from Customers 70.49 96.48
|
Total B 70.49 96.48
Receivables
Trade Receivables 7.755.58 3,662.93
Less : Imiairment allowance for trade receivables | S
— Total - 7,755.58 3,662.93
Significant changes in the contract liabilities balances during the year are as follows:
| . Particulars FY 2021-22 FY2020-21 |
Opening Balance 96.49 39.86 |
Addition during the year 70.49 96.49
Revenue recognised during the year 96.49 39.86
Other Adjustment
| o . I —
|Closinz Balance - 7049 | 9649 |

Information about major customers

One customer has more than 10% of the Company’s revenue from operations for the year ended March 31, 2022,

One custemer has more than 10% of the Company’s revenue from operations for the year ended March 31, 2021.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Company don't not have any oustanding foreign exposure as at March 31, 2022.

Tax Reconciliation

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Net Profit as per Profit and Loss Account (before tax) 486.23 1,257.69 |
Current Tax rate 33.38% 34.94%
Current Tax 162.32 43949
Adjustment:
Others 3893 14.40
Interest on Income Tax for Earlier Years 0.09
Ind AS Impact (0.94) 1.06
‘Tax Provision as per Books - 200.32 | 455.04
Analytical Ratios (as required by Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013)
Asal T
Mﬂl’t:l‘ ;?2()22 March3 Reason for variance (if above
S.No. Ratio Numerator D 0 2021 % Variance 25%)
| Ratio Ratio
l 1 |Currentratio (in times) Total current assets Total current liabilities 115 | 1.09 5.42% -
2 Debt-Equity ratio (in times) Debt consists of borrowings and Total equity* 0.41 294.72% | Change in the ratio is due to
| | lease liahilities increase in Borrowings
Debt service coverage ratio {in times) |Earning for Debt Service = Net Profit| Debt service = Interest and 1117 21.03%
after taxes + Non-cash operating lease payments + Principal
expenses + Interest + Other non- repayment
cash adjustment
4 |Return on equity ratio (in %) Net Profit After Tax Average Shareholder’s equity* 0.06 0.11 -41.17% | Change in the ratio is due'to
incresae in profit which resulted
| in increase in Shareholder’s
equity
i iinventory turnover ratio (in times) B Revenue from operatians Average Inventory T8 -57.31%)| Change in the ratio is due to
decrease in revenue and
Incresae in Inventory
6 | Trade receivables turnover ratio (in time Revenue from operations Average trade receivables 10.13 | 47.75 ~78.79%|Change in the ratio is due to Bl
decrease in revenue and
Incresae in Trade Receivables
Trade payables turnover ratio (in times) Cost of Goods Sold Average trade payables 5.48 6.70 -18.24%
8 |Net capital turnover ratiofin times) Revenue from operations Working capital (j.e. Total 41.13 63.60 Change in the ratio is dueue to
current assets less Total decrease in Revenue and
current liabilities) decrease in working capital
9 |Net profit ratio {in %) Profit/(Loss} after Tax for the year Revenue from operations 0.41% N
10 [Return on capital employed (in - Profit before tax and finance cost 'Capital employed = Net worth -43.66%| Change in the ratio is due to
+ Lease liabilities + Deferred Decresae in profit and increase
tax liabilities in finnace cost
11 |Returnon investment (in%) Income g;nerated from invested Average invested funds in
funds treasury investments
(a) |Fixed Income Investments Interest Income Manthly average investmentin 3.08% 3.77% L¥
| Fixed Income investments
i | .
*Total Equity/Shareholder's Equity includes Instruments Entirely Equity in Nature
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53 Other Statutory Information

i) The Company do not have any immovable property. In respect of land and building taken on lease disclosed in the financial statements as Right of Use
Assets, the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company.

ii} The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous
year.

iii) The Company does not have any investment in properties.

iv) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property.

v) The Company has not advanced any loans or advances in the nature of loans to specified persons viz. promoters, directors, KMPs, related parties; which are
repayable on demand or where the agreement does not specity any terms or period of repayment except loan given to wholly owned subsidiary which is
repayable on demand.

vi) The Company has utilised funds raised from borrowings from banks for the specific purposes for which they were taken.
vii) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of

security of current assets and the quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the
books of account of the Company except as mentioned hereunder:

Rs. In Lakhs
ELor s Amount as per
Q Bank Particulars renontedinline Unaudited Books of] Difference Reason for Discrepancies
ending Name quarterly
Accounts il
return/statement
30-06-2021 Inventory 1,756.06 1,757.27 [1.21]
Trade Receivable 6,478.26 6,575.75 197.49]| The ditterences are hecunse the stutements filed with
30-09-2021 ‘ lnventory : 1.11-11.(]9 1416.94 15.85 | Jehie Torndors are bisoedl on :::1.1:|L|.-'._~ O
HDFC |Trade Receivable 7,596.75 7.730.90 [134.15] | jpreegriareid an i prad isional nasis Sofe ajiisterent ail
. Bank |[lnventory 2,141.57 2.142.23 (0.65] Jelhshltication Janges hlive Beemn fiaile G the tm
-12-20
I Tl Rediivithly 4,644.02 4,632.25 11.76 |feview of hawles of avvounts Furtler, s rmatidles
LA 2R Inventory 1,408.87 1,408.90 [0.03] fire e myaseriil
sy Trade Receivable 7,271.06 7.23547 1484.41|
viii) The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any lender who has powers to declare a company as a wilful detaulrer at any time during the

financial year or after the end of reporting period but before the date when financial statements are approved.
ix} The Company does not have any transactions with struck-off companies.

x)  The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts but has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

xi) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

xii) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

xiii} The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies (ROC) beyond the statutory period.

xiv) The Company has not reccived any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

xv) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a)  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
(b)  provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

54 The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential assent in
September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of [ndia. The Ministry of Labour and Employment ('Ministry') has released draft rules for the
Code on November 13, 2020 and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the Ministry. However, the date on
which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any
related impact in the period in which the Code becomes effective.
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55 (i) Previous year's figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary to confirm current year classitication / presentation.

(i1) Figures represnting 0.00 lakhs are below Rs. 500
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